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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good afternoon.

          3  I'm Council Member Stanley Michels, Chair of the

          4  Environmental Protection Committee of the City

          5  Council. I want to welcome you to today's hearing on

          6  three important bills: Intro. No. 906; Intro. No.

          7  692; and Resolution No. 1923. I'm going to explain

          8  these, what they each are.

          9                 Section 24-228 of the code, of the

         10  administrative code of the City of New York

         11  currently states that, no person shall cause or

         12  permit the creation of any unreasonable noise

         13  through the use of any device on any street adjacent

         14  to any school or court, while the same is in

         15  session, or adjacent to any hospital.

         16                 The bill I have introduced, Intro.

         17  906, and that's the first bill I want to mention,

         18  would add the words "or nursing home at the end of

         19  that section, or to clearly establish that excessive

         20  noise or unreasonable noise is off limits near

         21  nursing homes.

         22                 Unreasonable noise is defined as "any

         23  excessive or unusually loud sound that disturbs the

         24  peace, comfort or repose of a reasonable person of

         25  normal sensitivities, or injures or endangers the
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          2  health or safety of a reasonable person of normal

          3  sensitivities, or get this, which causes injury to

          4  plant or animal life, or damage to property or

          5  businesses.

          6                 That is the standard that we added to

          7  the code in 1993, to satisfy a court decision which

          8  nullified the old standard which was unnecessary

          9  noise as being overly broad and vague, because who

         10  can say what is unnecessary and what is necessary?

         11  It depends on the subject of system.

         12                 Anyway, it is only logical that

         13  nursing homes shall have the same protection from

         14  excessive noise as hospitals. Now-a-days, in fact,

         15  many nursing home residents can be as ill as

         16  hospital patients. Nursing homes often receive

         17  patients who are discharged directly from hospitals

         18  and they provide subacute care services, such as IV

         19  infusions, respiratory care and intensive

         20  rehabilitation, I guess one of the reasons why the

         21  hospital cost is so high and nursing home costs are

         22  less high.

         23                 Excessive noise interferes with this

         24  care and also creates confusion, especially for

         25  mentally impaired individuals, but whether ill or
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          2  well, elderly residents of nursing homes are

          3  entitled to expect a decent quality of life.

          4                 Intro. 906 would give the New York

          5  City Department of Environmental Protection and the

          6  Police Department the legal tools to help ensure

          7  that the residents of nursing homes would be able to

          8  live their lives without being disturbed by loud and

          9  disruptive noise.

         10                 Now we come to the other bill, Intro.

         11  No. 692, which focuses on the potential dangers

         12  posed by hazardous substances, which there are so

         13  many in our community, in our environment. These

         14  dangers demand that we do all that we can to ensure

         15  that our citizens and our emergency response

         16  personnel are protected from those who improperly

         17  store or illegally dispose of these substances. And

         18  we know even small amounts, infinitesimal amounts of

         19  hazardous substances can cause tragic consequences

         20  when dumped or abandoned. Everyone here today I'm

         21  sure remembers that tragic accidents involved in New

         22  York City Sanitation worker Michael Hanly, I guess

         23  that was 1996, that long ago and we still remember,

         24  who was killed in 1996 by a small quantity of

         25  hydrochloric acid in a discarded container. He had
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          2  put it in the back of the Sanitation truck and the

          3  Sanitation truck was compressed and the vial spilled

          4  on him, as a result of which he died.

          5                 Imagine, if you will, tragedies that

          6  could result from dumping of a much larger quantity

          7  or substance like this into our densely-populated

          8  environment, or the terrible fate of firefighters or

          9  other emergency response personnel who enter a site

         10  that unbeknownst to them is stockpiled with these

         11  deadly materials.

         12                 We must do all we can to discourage

         13  users of these materials from dumping them

         14  illegally, and to make sure that those who must

         15  store these materials in their facilities report all

         16  of these substances to DEP, to the agency, so that

         17  our City personnel know what to expect when they

         18  come across these areas, comes across these

         19  materials, or when they are performing services in a

         20  house, maybe it's on fire or anything else.

         21                 So, the intro we are proposing,

         22  Intro. 692, calls to the increase of penalties,

         23  including the creation of criminal sanctions to

         24  those who are violators, who continue to operate

         25  with disregard to the requirements of New York City
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          2  hazardous substance emergency response law. And I

          3  might say disregard for the life and health of other

          4  people.

          5                 Our next bill is a resolution which

          6  calls upon the City of New York to join localities

          7  all over the world in the Cities for Climate

          8  Protection Campaign.

          9                 You only have to read the New York

         10  Times, the front page of the New York Times today to

         11  see what we're talking about.

         12                 The purpose behind Reso 1923m,

         13  Resolution 1923, is to have the City accept the

         14  invitation of the International Council for local

         15  environmental initiatives and become a partner in

         16  the City's climate protection campaign.

         17                 The name of this organization, they

         18  call it ICLEI, there is a gentleman here from ICLEI.

         19  And I am a member of ICLEI, and I must reveal that

         20  to you. I'm a member.

         21                 The Cities for Climate Protection,

         22  also known as CCP, is a performance-oriented

         23  campaign of ICLEI that offers a frame work for local

         24  governments to develop a strategic agenda to reduce

         25  global warming and air pollution emissions with the
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          2  benefits of improving the community's quality of

          3  life and really save money as well.

          4                 Last Thursday, the New York Times

          5  reported that the National Academy of Sciences, one

          6  of the most respected organizations, was given the

          7  task by the President of the United States, released

          8  a report declaring that global warming was a real

          9  problem and was getting worse.

         10                 The report stated that "greenhouse

         11  gases are accumulating in the earth's atmosphere as

         12  a result of human activities causing surface air

         13  temperatures and surface, subsurface ocean

         14  temperatures to rise. Temperatures are in fact

         15  rising.

         16                 As a matter of fact, I told a number

         17  of people that last summer I had to be on a cruise

         18  that went up to arctic ice cap, where you couldn't

         19  go any further, we were approximately 570 miles from

         20  the North Pole, and you could see, there were no

         21  icebergs, you could see the breaking off, how think

         22  the ice cap was.

         23                 Now, I can't definitively say that

         24  was caused by -- but that's been reported, that

         25  that's one of the effects of it, melt the ice cap
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          2  and cause a lot of flooding.

          3                 As a participant in this voluntary

          4  and free campaign, the City of New York would take a

          5  leadership role increasing energy efficiency,

          6  improve air quality and reducing greenhouse gas

          7  emissions, and would plan for, monitor, and qualify

          8  the benefits of action already taken, as well as

          9  future action in these critical areas. So, now we

         10  know how important it is.

         11                 Before I call our first witness from

         12  the New York City Department of Environmental

         13  Protection, I would like to identify Council Member

         14  Robles and some other members, as they come in I

         15  will identify them.

         16                 So, now I will call the Department of

         17  Environmental Protection. After we have heard from

         18  you, and during the course of this hearing, we are

         19  going to take a vote on all three of these pieces of

         20  legislation, two of which are intros and one is a

         21  resolution.

         22                 And our first witness is Robert

         23  Avaltroni, who is the Deputy Commissioner of the New

         24  York Department of Environmental Protection, and

         25  you'll identify your associates, and please give our
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          2  very best to the Commissioner.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Good

          5  afternoon, Mr. Chairman, and members. To my right is

          6  Michael Gilzman, Assistant Commissioner,

          7  Environmental Compliance, and Mark Lanagan, our

          8  Legislative Affairs representative.

          9                 My name is Bob Avaltroni, I'm Deputy

         10  Commissioner, Environmental Compliance, New York

         11  City Department of Environmental Protection.

         12                 On behalf of Commissioner Miele,

         13  thank you for allowing me to comment very briefly in

         14  support of two items on today's agenda, Introductory

         15  692, and Introductory 906.

         16                 The first of these bills introduced

         17  by Council Member Michels at the request of Mayor

         18  Giuliani, makes several amendments to the New York

         19  City Spill Bill.

         20                 The single most important of these

         21  amendments allows for criminal penalties of up to

         22  one year in prison and a $25,000 fine.

         23                 The threat of imprisonment

         24  particularly will prove to be a powerful tool

         25  encouraging users of hazardous substances to act
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          2  responsively.

          3                 As you suggested, the death of

          4  Sanitation worker Michael Hanly is a very harsh

          5  reminder of the consequences of using or disposing

          6  of hazardous substances illegally and without proper

          7  regard for the risks hazardous substances can pose.

          8                 In New York City, we want to convey a

          9  strong message that reckless use of disposal of

         10  hazardous substances is a crime and is punishable as

         11  such.

         12                 Enactment of Intro. 692 will send

         13  this message.

         14                 Commissioner Miele, myself and DEP

         15  staff are grateful to support Chairman Michels and

         16  the Committee enacting this legislation.

         17                 The other bill on today's agenda,

         18  Introductory Number 906, will extend to nursing

         19  homes the noise code's prohibition on the use of

         20  devices to create unreasonable noise in the vicinity

         21  of schools, courts and hospitals.

         22                 DEP agrees with the sponsor that

         23  nursing homes are an appropriate category of

         24  facilities to be protected by Section 24-228, the

         25  noise code provision that legislation amends.
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          2  Therefore, DEP is in support of this legislation.

          3                 Again, I thank you for giving me the

          4  opportunity to testify to this Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, thank you

          6  for being here, and I trust and it is important that

          7  since you're the agency in charge of enforcing this

          8  legislation, that you will do as you have done in

          9  the past on so many important pieces of legislation,

         10  that we will enforce it and can carry it out to the

         11  maximum extent.

         12                 The Hanly, we really should call it

         13  the Hanly bill --

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

         15  was something actually I was going to go off the

         16  record and suggest, because it is a vivid reminder

         17  to us, he is not forgotten, his family is not

         18  forgotten. Obviously he gave his life doing his job

         19  in the City of New York, and I think this

         20  legislation, we certainly would support that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And do you see

         22  any problem -- violations actually, the criminal

         23  actually goes to the Criminal Court.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The civil part
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          2  will go to the Environmental Control Board.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

          4  Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would imagine.

          6  And I think it would be important that we do that in

          7  the recommendations, and I would recommend it to the

          8  Environmental Control Board that when somebody is

          9  brought up on charges with this violation, that they

         10  search their records and see to it whether or not

         11  there are any other environmental violations that

         12  they had, and make sure the fine is commensurate

         13  with the past conduct, it doesn't have to be this

         14  particular violation, but if they've done other

         15  things which shows insensitivity to the environment,

         16  to the situation, because one of the big problems we

         17  have is making sure that it doesn't become part of

         18  the cost of doing business.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes, I

         20  think that's a very good point, and I think the

         21  enhancement of the penalties, I think will be

         22  significant. I think getting as much information on

         23  the offender is significantly important, and as we

         24  suggest, and I think we both suggested, the fact

         25  that there is going to be criminal charges now, is I
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          2  think so needed and I think will be a certain

          3  deterrent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the other

          5  aspect which I think is extremely important to me is

          6  the fact, there are people today who are storing

          7  hazardous materials and are not reporting them to

          8  us, and we've had some oversight hearings with

          9  respect to that, you recall.

         10                 We've had some oversight hearings

         11  with respect to the failure to report. Could you

         12  give us some estimate, if you could, if you could

         13  give us some more detail of what percentage of those

         14  people we believe who have hazardous materials are

         15  actually doing the reporting? I remember we had a

         16  hearing on that.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         18  would be glad to supply you with information. As you

         19  suggest, at various hearings we've made it known

         20  that in one year we've obviously done more than the

         21  prior seven years. So, it's gotten our attention. We

         22  have worked with this committee diligently and we

         23  will continue to do so in the future.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because the law

         25  really is "hazardous substance emergency response
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          2  law.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's the law

          5  that we're amending.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, we're

          8  increasing the fines for those people who have

          9  hazardous materials who do not report them.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And if this is

         12  well publicized, and if it is enforced, that should

         13  help us to get the people to respond to that law and

         14  to obey that law.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         16  As you know, we are talking about the Spill Bill. We

         17  are intensifying our efforts, as you know, under our

         18  Right To Know Program, to identify facilities

         19  throughout the City.

         20                 As I suggested a few moments ago,

         21  we've been very successful in that regard.

         22                 But you were right, Mr. Chairman, I

         23  think when we do find someone we'd like not to find

         24  anyone being abusive in this regard, we will

         25  obviously send a message and I think highlight the
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          2  fact that there are people out there that are not

          3  responsible and they will pay a heavy price for it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: See, when the

          5  law works correctly, it's very helpful.

          6                 To have, and I know a number of years

          7  ago we started this, that we communicate the

          8  information, say, to the Fire Department, or any

          9  other emergency response, and if that's the case and

         10  they know that there is hazardous materials in an

         11  area on fire, they can prepare for it by wearing the

         12  correct equipment. And what's more, we now have a

         13  unit that goes out with showers, so that if they

         14  come out of a -- it's a big truck, I guess, that has

         15  showers on it.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Decon

         17  (phonetic), yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And they will

         19  come out of the truck, out of the fire, and

         20  immediately go there to be washed down.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         22  Well, what we do, obviously, on the scene our people

         23  interface with the various agencies that are out

         24  there, the Fire Department, OEM, Police Department,

         25  and we'll take control to ensure that everything is
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          2  being done properly.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have the

          4  communication so they know what to expect when they

          5  go into a fire --

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: You

          7  are very right. We share that information. We don't

          8  want anyone going into a situation without having a

          9  broad spectrum of knowledge in terms of what they're

         10  dealing with.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And then be able

         12  to communicate that.

         13                 Also, they have to know what's there,

         14  because they may have to use different types of

         15  materials to fight a fire, for instance.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

         17  is correct. And we've done everything within the

         18  last, oh, six years or so, to ensure that that

         19  communication is very positive, leaves nothing to

         20  chance.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Positive and

         22  quick.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: And

         24  quick, and timely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And use the
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          2  computers.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: No

          4  question about it. I think our record speaks to

          5  that, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Thank you

          7  very much. As usual, I always appreciate your

          8  cooperation. My best to the Commissioner.

          9                 Is there any other questions? Anyone

         10  else?

         11                 Mr. Robles.

         12                 We are now joined by Council Member

         13  Freed from Manhattan.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Commissioner,

         15  good seeing you.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         17  Likewise.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Walk us

         19  through, the law gets enacted, gets signed into law,

         20  changes what normally people knew what was on the

         21  books. In terms of outreach, education, what does

         22  the agency plan on doing to inform the public of

         23  this new change? And like in other things, will

         24  there be a campaign so that if someone sees someone

         25  violating the law, what role can they play, what is
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          2  that component that you plan on doing?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

          4  plan, Councilman Robles, to obviously have public

          5  service announcements. We will also consider the

          6  possibility of sending out mailings with regard to,

          7  I'm just using it off the top of my head, with water

          8  bills, to make people aware that in fact that this

          9  law does exist.

         10                 I think when we talk about

         11  communication, as the Chairman suggested before,

         12  it's very important to communicate within, but I

         13  think what you're suggesting is that the public be

         14  very much aware of the hazards that are imposed by

         15  certain materials, and what we can do to help them

         16  assist them.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Let me make

         18  some suggestions, if I may.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: First of all,

         21  let's start with the 59 community boards throughout

         22  the City, because you're talking about 50 community

         23  residents leaders within the communities of the

         24  City.

         25                 Second, there are areas in parts of
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          2  the City which are chronic areas, especially I

          3  happen to represent North Brooklyn, so I have an

          4  industrial area, I have a commercial area, East

          5  Williamsburg is known for an area because of what

          6  used to be factories is now being converted into

          7  lofts, in housing, so there are areas of the City

          8  where if you're going to do something like that,

          9  those are the areas, so I suggest that also in the

         10  Department of Business Services you have these, like

         11  Evitco (phonetic), which is funded by the City,

         12  these community-based organizations, so that they

         13  would also help you.

         14                 They have newsletters. I know in

         15  Williamsburg we have the Green Line, in Bushwick we

         16  have the Bushwick observer, may I suggest that we

         17  look at those community-based organizations that are

         18  funded by the City that could be very helpful, also

         19  spreading the word.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: I

         21  concur with you completely. In fact, I think it's an

         22  excellent idea and we appreciate that.

         23                 In fact, we have a group that's under

         24  my jurisdiction, which is separate and apart which

         25  actually goes out and meets with groups, with the
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          2  industrial groups, what have you, and we would be

          3  very, very happy to work with you in developing a

          4  list to make sure that outreach is totally

          5  appropriate and encompasses all the people of the

          6  City of New York.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I just wanted to

         10  put on the record the civil fine for a violation of

         11  this law, goes from a minimum of $10,000 to a

         12  maximum of $25,000.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: That

         14  is correct, yes. Again, that is a significant

         15  penalty, but it's one, again, by having the criminal

         16  attachment even makes it more significant.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And of course

         18  that's each event.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, unless

         21  you're really doing a lot of business, you can't get

         22  --

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         24  your analogy before, that's the cost of doing

         25  business, well it's a high price to pay and a
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          2  criminal price to pay is one I don't think anyone

          3  wants to.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, it's a

          5  misdemeanor, which is all we can do.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which means you

          8  can get up to a year in jail. That's how we define a

          9  misdemeanor.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And a fine of

         12  not less than $25,000.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: Yes,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, that's

         16  pretty tough. And that's what we want it to be, it

         17  should be advertised, and the best way of

         18  advertising it is convict somebody, and define them

         19  if they do it.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         21  Absolutely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Is there

         23  anything else you want to add, gentlemen?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         25  just thank you, as always.
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          2                 Obviously, the Mayor working with the

          3  Speaker, our agency working with this great

          4  Committee is something that I think that maybe

          5  people are not aware of also, and I think this has

          6  worked great, and we look forward to your

          7  interpretation of what we do, and certainly your

          8  recommendations and we thank you for your efforts.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If we save one

         10  life, one person, then it's all worth it.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI: We

         12  agree.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 The next witness we have is Chris

         16  Giovinazzo.

         17                 Welcome, Chris. Anita, why don't you

         18  join him.

         19                 I may know you but we have to have

         20  you on the record because we have, it's all on the

         21  tape machine and whoever is going to transcribe has

         22  to know who you are. So they get that by recognizing

         23  your voice as you state your name.

         24                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Okay. My name is

         25  Chris Giovinazzo, I'm with the International Council
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          2  for Local Environmental Initiatives, or ICLEI, as

          3  our wordy acronym reduces to.

          4                 ICLEI is a worldwide nonprofit

          5  association of local governments, working to address

          6  local, regional and global environmental problems.

          7                 The City of New York has been a

          8  member of ICLEI for a number of years.

          9                 Today's resolution is to consider

         10  participating also in Cities for Climate Protection,

         11  which is one of ICLEI's programs.

         12                 Cities for Climate Protection is a

         13  free and voluntary program through which local

         14  governments work to reduce the emissions that

         15  contribute to global warming. There are nearly 500

         16  local governments in the world participating in

         17  Cities for Climate Protection, and over 100 in the

         18  United States, including Los Angeles, Chicago,

         19  Boston, Philadelphia, Seattle, Atlanta, Denver and

         20  many others.

         21                 The concept behind Cities for Climate

         22  Protection is that local governments can reduce

         23  greenhouse gas emissions in ways that are consistent

         24  with local priorities and budget realities.

         25                 In fact, I think the record of the
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          2  cities and counties currently participating in the

          3  program is that the same policies that they

          4  implement to mitigate smog, reduce traffic, cut

          5  energy costs for the municipality and citizens and

          6  generally improve quality of life, are the same

          7  policies which can often reduce greenhouse gas

          8  emissions, and just to cite a couple examples, in

          9  Philadelphia the City has replaced all of its

         10  traffic signal with light emitting dios, which is a

         11  technology that saves 80 to 90 percent of the

         12  electricity normally used by standard traffic

         13  signals. In addition to reducing electricity demand

         14  and pollution from power plants, Philadelphia's LEDs

         15  save over $700,000 a year in energy and maintenance

         16  costs.

         17                 The City of Chicago has initiated a

         18  substantial solar power program to place solar power

         19  on City facilities and schools, in addition to the

         20  educational benefit of those solar cells on top of

         21  the schools. The size of the program allowed Chicago

         22  to attract a solar manufacturer to the City bringing

         23  jobs and tax revenue as well. And many of the local

         24  governments working in Cities for Climate Protection

         25  have adopted comprehensive plans to reduce their
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          2  greenhouse gas emissions.

          3                 Most recently the City of Los Angeles

          4  adopted a comprehensive target of a ten percent

          5  reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from municipal

          6  operations by the Year 2010. That's a very

          7  aggressive goal. It's more aggressive even than many

          8  of the contentious national and international

          9  targets being debated right now.

         10                 Now, what Cities for Climate

         11  Protection offers is, first and foremost the network

         12  of local government taking action on the issue of

         13  global warming. That means access to best practice

         14  information, and the kinds of sample ordinance

         15  language and really the knowledge of what is working

         16  in other cities and counties across the country. We

         17  hold national workshops and it's a networking

         18  opportunity so you can contact us and say, you know,

         19  who has a successful weatherization program for

         20  low-income homes or an energy code or any range of

         21  policies.

         22                 Second, Cities for Climate Protection

         23  offers a methodology for addressing greenhouse gas

         24  emissions. So, how exactly would a local government

         25  do something about that issue?
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          2                 The first part of that methodology is

          3  taking an inventory of emissions to find out what

          4  are the emissions coming from New York City,

          5  contributing to global warming. We have a complete

          6  methodology for the data you need to collect, all of

          7  it is existing City data typically, and we have

          8  software to calculate those emissions. And that

          9  inventory becomes a strategic tool for targeting

         10  policies measuring your progress.

         11                 Following your inventory, the City

         12  can set a target for a long range goal of emissions

         13  reduction, and plan, implement and monitor policies

         14  to reduce emissions.

         15                 Everything New York City would do

         16  under Cities for Climate Protection would be done at

         17  your pace. You would choose all the policies, and

         18  it's not designed to replace existing environmental

         19  effort for something that works with, you know,

         20  existing energy reduction use planning,

         21  transportation planning, air quality mitigation.

         22                 And I think a final benefit of Cities

         23  for Climate Protection is we have the tools to help

         24  you measure the impacts of policies that you're

         25  already undergoing. Particularly in a City like New
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          2  York which is probably the most deficient in terms

          3  of transportation in the nation, has perhaps the

          4  largest recycling and waste reduction program in the

          5  nation. This is a way to actually measure what is

          6  your impact on greenhouse gas emissions and take

          7  credit for that, which is something that the

          8  Department of Energy and EPA look very favorably

          9  upon, those are two of our primary funders, and it's

         10  great timing at the state level as well under

         11  Governor Pataki, New York State is implementing its

         12  own greenhouse gas emissions inventory and should

         13  have a draft plan for reducing emissions by the end

         14  of the summer, maybe sooner.

         15                 I want to thank you again for

         16  considering this resolution. ICLEI looks forward to

         17  working with New York City and we really hope that

         18  you will be participating soon, and I welcome any

         19  questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will ask

         21  questions after the testimony.

         22                 Please identify yourself.

         23                 MS. NAEGER: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Anita Naeger.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, move the
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          2  mike a little closer.

          3                 MS. NAEGER: Good afternoon. My name

          4  is Anita Naeger, I'm a Senior Program Officer at the

          5  New York Community Trust, the community foundation

          6  for New York City.

          7                 While the vast majority of our grants

          8  are made to non-profit groups and issues within the

          9  five boroughs, some of our funds specify that we

         10  take a national and even international perspective

         11  on issues.

         12                 Two years ago we made our first grant

         13  to the Cities for Climate Protection Campaign from a

         14  new national environmental fund.

         15                 With this fund we had been supporting

         16  advocacy efforts to secure US ratification of the

         17  Kyoto protocol, which as you know is the

         18  international agreement setting limits to the

         19  production of greenhouse gases.

         20                 We were frustrated by the lack of

         21  progress in moving the protocol and we were looking

         22  desperately for new strategies to make the issue of

         23  climate change real to citizens, and demonstrate

         24  that reducing carbon did not have to mean reducing

         25  quality of life or economic prosperity. Above all,
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          2  we wanted to bring the issue home to people where

          3  they lived.

          4                 The Cities for Climate Protection

          5  Campaign was appealing to us. It seeks to work with

          6  local governments throughout the world, and give

          7  them the tools to understand their contribution to

          8  the problem of climate change, global warming and

          9  how they can be part of the solution.

         10                 I'm here to tell you today how proud

         11  we are of the leadership and commitment exercised by

         12  this Committee in considering this resolution.

         13                 We will be especially pleased as the

         14  community foundation for New York City to know that

         15  part of our grant can be used to support the

         16  participation of our own City in this important

         17  campaign.

         18                 We would urge a movement of this

         19  proposal to the full Council.

         20                 Thanks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         22  much. And you're right in what you say, since it's

         23  probably a lot of the money that goes for your

         24  foundation does come from the City of New York. It's

         25  really important.
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          2                 And I think it's extremely

          3  appropriate, as I mentioned before, that we have the

          4  hearing today, and it wasn't my plan, it just

          5  happened we wanted to do it today. It is front-page

          6  news probably in the world, even more in other parts

          7  of the world than here today that the President's

          8  study has come out to the effect that we must do

          9  something, even though it may not be in accord with

         10  the Kyoto reports.

         11                 And I think people would be

         12  interested, I was interested in today's Times, and I

         13  would like your comment on it, if I could Chris,

         14  page A12 of the Times, if you want to see it, they

         15  have a list of the producers of major greenhouse

         16  gases in the world, and, of course, the United

         17  States is listed as number one, because we are the

         18  most industrialized world, most industrialized

         19  nation in the world, and the people say, well, you

         20  know, and I think it was William Sapphire of the New

         21  York Times once said, as opposed to debunking the

         22  whole idea of greenhouse gases, said we're all

         23  producing carbon dioxide, but there's a balance that

         24  we have of that, and that balance is that that

         25  carbon dioxide is to chlorophyll is turned into

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  oxygen, but when you are overwhelmed by greenhouse

          3  gases it frustrates the balances, and changes the

          4  nature of the balance of nature, which is what we're

          5  talking about; is that correct?

          6                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Yes, absolutely. The

          7  United States is about five percent of the world's

          8  population and emits more than 20 percent of the

          9  world's greenhouse gas emissions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They even have

         11  more detail. They say here that for the year 1997,

         12  these are the figures they had, the latest figure of

         13  1997, they said in millions of metric tons, the

         14  total emissions in the United States for a year I

         15  think was 6,503.8 tons. That amounts to

         16  approximately -- that's right, millions of metric

         17  tons, 6,503.8 --

         18                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Million. Million

         19  metric tons.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Million, a year.

         21  Billion? Million?

         22                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: So, it's 6,000

         23  million, so 6 billion.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Six billion

         25  tons.
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          2                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: That's right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's right.

          4  Six billion five-hundred and three tons of carbon

          5  dioxide. You're talking about carbon dioxide, we're

          6  not even talking about some of the other emissions,

          7  and that amounts to some 24.3 metric tons of carbon

          8  dioxide per person.

          9                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Yes, burning a gallon

         10  of gasoline emits, a single gallon of gasoline emits

         11  20 pounds of carbon dioxide into the atmosphere,

         12  because carbon, part of the gasoline reacts with

         13  oxygen in the atmosphere, so it's actually a very

         14  large amount.

         15                 And one thing that's important about

         16  global warming right now is that the vast majority

         17  of emissions contributing to global warming come

         18  from the burning of fossil fuels.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         20                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: So, it's very much

         21  tied with the energy issue and --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Fossil fuels

         23  being oil, gas and coal --

         24                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Coal, oil.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oil, coal and
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          2  natural gas.

          3                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Right. So, you know,

          4  the same policy is to reduce demand for energy and

          5  increase energy efficiency, directly improve our

          6  greenhouse emissions outlook. So, it's one in the

          7  same.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Next you have

          9  China, followed by India, and even though there are

         10  so many

         11  Chinese that only use 4 tons per person, but the

         12  fact is one of the highest per person per capita is

         13  Canada, and that is very surprising, isn't it?

         14                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Well, I think the

         15  biggest determination is the industrialized nations

         16  use more energy and then a lot of it is the land use

         17  and transportation patterns of the country.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They have so few

         19  people in Canada. Same population as the State of

         20  New York.

         21                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: Right. Well, in the

         22  per capita sense Canada's emissions are close to the

         23  United States.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So, people, we

         25  have to bring it home to people, what we're talking
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          2  about. It's not something ethereal, something that

          3  we can't really realize and conceive of, and that

          4  something is really happening here which is very

          5  dangerous and we're going to feel the results in our

          6  lifetime.

          7                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: And particularly in

          8  New York City the Goddard Institute of Nassau has

          9  done a metropolitan regional report on the predicted

         10  impacts of global warming on the New York

         11  metropolitan region, both JFK and LaGuardia's

         12  runways are only a few feet above sea level, so just

         13  in terms of the airports, but also the whole

         14  coastline, would be threatened by a searise from the

         15  melting of the ice caps, and other impacts include

         16  increase in heat stroke, direct impact on smog, as

         17  temperatures rise, summer smog becomes worse, and

         18  there are a lot of predictions that tropical

         19  diseases will become more frequent in northern

         20  climates, so things like West Nile Virus --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Anyone who wants

         22  to get a real feel, this is the April 9th of this

         23  year article of the New York Time magazine, gives a

         24  thorough understanding of this. I never realized

         25  myself to the extent which the greenhouse effect is
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          2  going to affect, and I imagine a lot of this has

          3  been reflected in the report of the Academy of

          4  Sciences.

          5                 Let me ask you something, and then

          6  Mr. Leffler has a question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't?

          9                 Let me ask you this: The question I

         10  have is, the greenhouse effect, there is an area in

         11  the atmosphere where the gases start accumulating

         12  causing the greenhouse effect, how high in the

         13  atmosphere is that; does anybody know?

         14                 MR. GIOVINAZZO: It's not like the

         15  ozone layer where there's a single very small layer

         16  of carbon monoxide or greenhouse gases, it's sort of

         17  a cumulative effect of the higher atmosphere gases.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I see.

         19                 Thank you very much, I really

         20  appreciate your being here and your testimony. And I

         21  think this should really be the beginning of what

         22  we're trying to do in this City and throughout all

         23  the cities, because if New York does it, everybody

         24  should do it. We started the curves on secondary

         25  smoke in the City and many other things, and we
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          2  should try to get everybody else to do it as well.

          3  So, thank you very much, both of you. And please

          4  tell Community Trust how grateful we are for the

          5  work that they're doing.

          6                 I think right now we are going to

          7  interrupt the testimony and we will take a vote.

          8                 Claude, are you here? Claude, we're

          9  going to have a vote on all three items. We're going

         10  to have a vote on, at this moment we're going to

         11  have a vote on Intro. 906, which is to amend the

         12  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         13  relation to prohibiting unreasonable noises, via

         14  nursing homes. Intro. No. 692, to amend the

         15  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         16  relation to New York City Hazardous Substance

         17  Emergency Response law, commonly known as the spill

         18  law, or the Hanly law; and then we're going to vote

         19  on a resolution, which is 1923, calling upon the

         20  City of New York to join the localities all over the

         21  world in a quote, Cities for Climate Protection

         22  Campaign.

         23                 I will ask that the vote be called

         24  now.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Michels.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For reasons I

          3  have stated and for reasons that are very obvious, I

          4  vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Leffler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: May I please

          7  be excused to explain my vote?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Certainly, Mr.

          9  Leffler.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: I'm going to

         11  vote aye on all items. I'm glad to see that the

         12  Spill Law, which was one of the very first, if not

         13  the first bill that we passed in 1986 or 1987 in the

         14  Environmental Committee is still being made even

         15  more relevant and more useful by its strengthening

         16  in this way. I vote aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Marshall.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: May I be

         21  excused to explain my vote?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Certainly,

         23  Council Member Marshall.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I vote aye

         25  on all, and I vote aye on all bills, and today my
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          2  vote is dedicated to Michael Hanly, who suffered

          3  because someone was careless in how they disregarded

          4  poisonous substances.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sabini.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Freed.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fiala.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         13  the affirmative, and zero in the negative and no

         14  abstentions, the items are adopted.

         15                 Please sign the reports.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are going to

         17  leave the vote open temporarily for one member.

         18  Unfortunately, one of our members cannot be here

         19  today, he is in prison in Brooklyn, Council Member

         20  Carrion, one of the Vieques 4. So, we will dedicate

         21  leaving the vote open to him, even though he won't

         22  be able to vote, I know he would be voting with us.

         23                 Our next witness is Roxanne

         24  Tena-Nelson, Greater New York Hospital Association.

         25                 I thank all the members for being
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          2  here and for taking the time out of their busy

          3  schedule. And Leslie Foster, my dear friend Leslie

          4  Foster, from one of the great nursing homes in the

          5  City of New York, otherwise known as the Isabella

          6  Geriatric Center.

          7                 Welcome. You can decide for yourself

          8  the order in which you want to be heard. All you

          9  have to do is identify yourself before you talk.

         10                 MS. FOSTER: Right. I wanted to catch

         11  the woman from New York Community Trust, but I

         12  missed her.

         13                 I'm Leslie Foster, Director of

         14  Government and Community Affairs at the Isabella

         15  Geriatric Center, and we're just very, very grateful

         16  to Councilman Michels and this Committee for

         17  introducing Number 906, to give nursing home

         18  residents protection from unreasonable noise.

         19                 Why I was touched by the Speaker from

         20  New York Community Trust is because it shows a wide

         21  range of work with this Committee, which is global,

         22  then comes down to a resident in a nursing home, and

         23  New York Community Trust funds a program to help

         24  young people interact with nursing home residents.

         25  So, our concern is for the quality of life for those

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  who live in the nursing home.

          3                 I was to a planning board meeting

          4  this morning, and was given a letter from one of our

          5  residents, again pleading for help for noise that

          6  started and went to two in the morning. My concern

          7  is that this is implemented as soon as possible,

          8  because as the summer is upon us, the noise is going

          9  to increase and we need this legislation to come

         10  through so that then the Department of DOT can

         11  implement, put signs up. I've heard from other

         12  nursing homes, they're very, very pleased with this

         13  initiative, so, just thanks for all of your work.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Leslie, that

         16  thanks should really be to you, because you are

         17  really the inspiration of this bill, and if

         18  anything, this should be called the Foster bill,

         19  because you were the one who came to us and told us

         20  about it, and we're appreciative, as I've always

         21  appreciated you.

         22                 MS. FOSTER: You're very welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: For all these

         24  years that we've been good friends. So, thank you,

         25  again. And I think that everybody should know that
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          2  you were the inspiration of this legislation.

          3                 MS. FOSTER: Thank you.

          4                 MS. TENA-NELSON: Hi. I'm Roxanne

          5  Tena-Nelson from the Greater New York Hospital

          6  Association. I'm with the Center for Continuing

          7  Care, and I wanted to reiterate the thanks that

          8  Leslie has given to both this Council, and also I

          9  thank Leslie for letting us know about this issue

         10  because that's how we are able to bring these issues

         11  to this level, and I just, I have a detailed written

         12  testimony about the benefits of noise, and that the

         13  major cause of sleep disturbance is noise in nursing

         14  homes and you can please feel free to go through

         15  that. I gave that testimony on April 19th as well,

         16  and I just wanted to thank Leslie, thank this

         17  Committee and also ask that we try as hard as

         18  possible to get this through as fast as possible,

         19  because the more expedient we are, the quicker that

         20  we can help the residents in the nursing homes from

         21  unreasonable noise.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You're welcome.

         24  Thank you very much. And I'm glad you're both here

         25  and I'm glad we have the support.
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          2                 MS. FOSTER: I was thrilled to hear

          3  the vote.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 Next we have Amy K. Boyle, the League

          7  for the Hard of Hearing.

          8                 Welcome, I'm always pleased to see

          9  you.

         10                 MS. BOYLE: Good afternoon.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We know of your

         12  organization and we have great respect and regard

         13  for your organization.

         14                 MS. BOYLE: Thank you. It's a pleasure

         15  to be here this afternoon.

         16                 My name is Amy Boyle. I'm the

         17  Assistant Director of Public Education at the League

         18  for the Hard of Hearing, and I'd like to thank the

         19  Chair, members and staff of the Committee of

         20  Environmental Protection of New York City for

         21  holding this important hearing and for inviting the

         22  League for the Hard of Hearing to testify on this

         23  matter.

         24                 Our Executive Director, Keith Muller,

         25  could not be with us this afternoon and has
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          2  requested that I testify in support of 906, and

          3  encourage you to continue to do whatever possible to

          4  reduce toxic noise and the disturbances unwelcomed

          5  noise creates.

          6                 Noise is a serious environmental and

          7  health hazard that affects millions of Americans

          8  today. William H. Steward, former United States

          9  Surgeon General stated, "Calling noise a nuisance is

         10  like calling smog an inconvenience. Noise must be

         11  considered a hazard to the health of people

         12  everywhere."

         13                 There are 28 million people in the

         14  United States with hearing loss, and exposure to

         15  loud noise is one of the leading causes. Statistics

         16  show an alarming trend suggesting that the incidence

         17  of loss is occurring at younger and younger ages.

         18  Noise also negatively impacts the health, learning,

         19  social behavior and quality of life.

         20                 The League for the Hard of Hearing

         21  has recently completed a 20-year study. In this

         22  study, hearing screens were performed in over

         23  100,000 people over a 20-year period. Results show

         24  that older New Yorkers fail hearing screenings today

         25  at much higher rates than they did in the past.
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          2  Increased exposure to environmental noise and other

          3  toxic medications are hypothesized to be the cause

          4  of this increase.

          5                 Last year the City Council allocated

          6  funds for the League for the Hard of Hearing to

          7  provide services to 20 senior centers annually in

          8  low-income neighborhoods across the City. These

          9  services include mobile testing, clinics that

         10  provide hearing screening, evaluations and referrals

         11  for hearing aids, as well as educational seminars

         12  for senior citizens and senior center staff.

         13                 Due to this program we found that 60

         14  percent failed the screening. Of the evaluations

         15  completed by the League in the first six months of

         16  the project, 58 percent of those who had complete

         17  evaluations provided by the League were found to

         18  have a hearing loss that was undiagnosed. They did

         19  not know they had a hearing loss.

         20                 Both of these projects conducted by

         21  the League clearly demonstrates that our senior

         22  population is experiencing more hearing loss and

         23  that many cases the hearing loss is not being

         24  addressed.

         25                 Many people are under the
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          2  misconception that if someone has a hearing loss the

          3  noise should not bother them, however, the opposite

          4  is true.

          5                 Noise for someone with a hearing loss

          6  makes it harder to hear and communicate. A recent

          7  survey by the National Council on the Aging found

          8  that among people with hearing loss, many suffer

          9  from depression, anxiety, paranoia, and had low

         10  levels of participation and organized activity.

         11                 Therefore, we need to whenever

         12  possible create an environment that facilitates good

         13  communication and good health.

         14                 Exposure to noise or unwanted sound,

         15  however, is more than just a threat to the ability

         16  to communicate.

         17                 Numerous studies have indicated that

         18  noise negatively affects learning and it causes

         19  physiological changes in sleep, blood pressure and

         20  digestion. Even without reading the study, we all

         21  know the stress that's created by unwanted sound,

         22  how irritating the dripping of a faucet in the

         23  middle of the night can be, let alone the more

         24  intrusive noises, such as car alarms, horns honking,

         25  blaring car stereos and dogs barking. For all of us

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  it is important to try and quiet our environment

          3  whenever possible to protect our hearing quality of

          4  life.

          5                 For those in nursing homes where

          6  communication and health are directly affected, it

          7  is necessary to quiet their environment, their

          8  surroundings, so that they may enjoy a full quality

          9  of life and good health.

         10                 Therefore, the League for the Hard of

         11  Hearing supports prohibiting unreasonable noise near

         12  nursing homes and commends the Council for

         13  continuing to pay attention to noise and for being

         14  responsive to those in nursing homes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         16  much. And as usual, your testimony is very relevant,

         17  it's on point, and it's important, and we're very

         18  appreciative of it.

         19                 This is, some people don't realize,

         20  you know, and it hurts me so to see, now we have the

         21  era of the earphones, I'm wondering what the

         22  results.

         23                 Have any studies been done on people

         24  who use those earphones? It used to be the big boom

         25  boxes, and everybody said, oh, thank God, they are
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          2  keeping the boom boxes down, now everybody blows

          3  their brains out with the earphones.

          4                 MS. BOYLE: That's something we are

          5  looking at. It's not hazardous, depending on the

          6  level you are listening to, but what we say,

          7  particularly to parents who call, I get a lot of

          8  questions from parents around the country, with

          9  their teenagers listening to music on their

         10  headsets, if the parents have to shout to be heard

         11  over that we're saying it's too loud, pay attention

         12  to it.

         13                 But it is, it's a concern as to how

         14  much --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the other

         16  thing, and I'm very conscious of, because my

         17  daughter just had a baby, a girl, and she recently

         18  went to the doctor after five weeks to test the

         19  baby's hearing, and so far, you know, the baby is

         20  doing very well. What do we do about testing school

         21  children, their hearing, to see to it -- because we

         22  are concerned about their eyes and their ears,

         23  because sometimes children who are hard of hearing,

         24  or children with diminished eyesight are categorized

         25  as learning disabled when they're really not, just
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          2  some of their senses have not been made acute.

          3                 MS. BOYLE: Sure. And one of the

          4  things we're looking at is classroom acoustics, as

          5  well, and to facilitate the learning process. But

          6  through the universal newborn hearing screening

          7  bills that have been passed by the states mandating

          8  hearing screening at birth in hospitals, that is

          9  proven to be one step to help detect any kind of

         10  problem early on so that action and intervention can

         11  be taken as soon as possible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I know they

         13  have the motorized vans people go on, but is there

         14  any regular consistent testing of children in first

         15  or second grade or even kindergarten?

         16                 MS. BOYLE: I'm not sure what New York

         17  City Board of Ed does in relation to that. I know in

         18  my own situation, my own circumstance, the doctors

         19  that I took my children to tested their hearing as a

         20  matter of course for their annual physicals that

         21  they had to have each year to continue school.

         22                 But that's something that I'll look

         23  into.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I would

         25  like to be interested in it, I would be interested
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          2  in it. I would imagine there are other groups like

          3  yours, not exactly like yours, but you're so active,

          4  that would be interested in doing something like

          5  that, especially we have a million children in

          6  schools, there must be a percentage of them that

          7  have hard of hearing and maybe they are misconstrued

          8  as to what their problems are.

          9                 MS. BOYLE: Definitely, because if

         10  they're not hearing then they have no opportunity to

         11  learn what the teacher is saying and to really be

         12  involved.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It would also

         14  seem to me that the parents should be more conscious

         15  of a child who is hard of hearing, rather than a

         16  child whose eyesight is diminished. You can tell if

         17  somebody doesn't see something, you can't always

         18  tell that they don't hear things.

         19                 MS. BOYLE: Yes, we call it the

         20  invisible disability, because you don't see it, you

         21  know, with eyesight, with you can wear glasses, with

         22  people with a hearing loss a lot of times you don't

         23  realize they have it and you don't see it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how many

         25  parents have young children where "you don't listen
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          2  to me, you don't listen to me," only later to

          3  discover the reason they don't listen is because

          4  they're not hearing them.

          5                 MS. BOYLE: That's true.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          7                 I think there is a question from

          8  Council Member Marshall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Yes.

         10                 Today we are experiencing loud, loud

         11  music, very, very loud, and many times young

         12  children are within earshot of it. I know sometimes

         13  I can, I just had a street there and I was kind of

         14  concerned because the children were gathering

         15  because the stage was there, but the music was so

         16  loud it was really, like even causing me a pound in

         17  the chest; how is that going to affect the future

         18  generation?

         19                 MS. BOYLE: Well, we know

         20  noise-induced hearing loss is cumulative over time,

         21  so any time you can pay attention, limit your

         22  exposure to loud noise it's important because you

         23  will conserve your hearing.

         24                 Everyone's susceptibility is

         25  different, however, I've been to the street fairs as
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          2  well, I know they're well above 85 decibels, 85

          3  decibels of continued exposure over time can cause

          4  hearing problems. And the thing with a noise-induced

          5  hearing loss, it's permanent, but it's 100 percent

          6  preventable, as long as we are aware of our

          7  exposure, limit our exposure.

          8                 One of the things the League does,

          9  particularly through its noise center and

         10  International Noise Awareness Day is to really try

         11  and educate the public through going on the Today

         12  Show, by Internet, conferences, to get the word out

         13  there to educate parents, children, teenagers, about

         14  the harmful effects of noise, and we're seeing more

         15  and more hearing loss. We think with the advent of

         16  the baby boomers and the rock concerns and, you

         17  know, we're seeing those effects now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: The street

         19  fairs are not as much of a concern because they come

         20  and go, but in the homes, if there is teenagers,

         21  they play, sometimes parents play the music so loud,

         22  and little children are there when hearing it.

         23                 MS. BOYLE: Definitely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: I have the

         25  Lexington School for the Deaf, it's not exactly in
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          2  my district but right outside of it, so, you know,

          3  we talk a lot to them and they're a great

          4  institution.

          5                 MS. BOYLE: They're wonderful. And

          6  that's one of the interesting things that came up is

          7  that people thought noise around Lexington School

          8  for the Deaf, what would be the problem them, noise

          9  should interfere, and it's the exact opposite,

         10  because the noise creates a harder time for people

         11  that are deaf and hard of hearing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: You can feel

         13  it. You can feel it.

         14                 MS. BOYLE: Definitely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Thank you.

         16  Yes, the vibrations.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MS. BOYLE: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         20  much, Amy Boyle, I appreciate your being here. I

         21  would like the record to indicate that we have a

         22  letter dated June 11th, which is today's date, from

         23  the Office of the New York Office of the Attorney

         24  General of the State of New York, Eliot Spitzer, and

         25  it's in reference to Intro. 692, in relation to New
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          2  York City hazardous substance emergency response

          3  law, and it says:

          4                 "Dear Council Member Michels:

          5                 We would like to record our support

          6  for the above measure, which would increase

          7  penalties for the improper disposal of hazardous

          8  substances and make other beneficial changes in the

          9  Administrative Code. The new language would reduce

         10  the difference between the City and State law in

         11  this area. Moreover, the increased penalties would

         12  significantly increase the deterrent effect on those

         13  who might otherwise handle hazardous substances

         14  irresponsibly.

         15                 This would help to eliminate the

         16  practice of abandoning containers of hazardous

         17  substances or otherwise causing their release in the

         18  anticipation of little more than a slap on the

         19  wrists. Endangering public health and the

         20  environment while absorbing modest penalties as a

         21  cost of doing business should never be tolerated.

         22                 Very Truly Yours, Peter Laner,

         23  Assistant Attorney General in charge of

         24  Environmental Protection Bureau, New York State

         25  Attorney General's Office."
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          2                 This is officially put into the

          3  record. We thank the Attorney General.

          4                 And if there is no other witnesses

          5  and no other questions, this meeting is hereby

          6  adjourned with our thanks.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 2:10 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 12th day of June 2001.
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